
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, May 17, 2023 | Page 1 of 2 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, May 17, 2023; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Gideon Fetterolf  City Manager Pamela Priddy 
Ward 2 John Baryak  Law Director Brad Bryan 
Ward 3 Tesa Spletzer  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  City Clerk Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor Kenneth Kline    

 

I. Call to Order 
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 

III. Roll Call 
IV. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
V. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 

VI. Reports 
a. Mayor  
b. Council Members 
c. Finance Director 
d. Law Director 
e. City Manager 

Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
 

VII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Regular Meeting Minutes May 3, 2023 
 

VIII. Public Hearings 

ORDINANCE 2023-16      Sponsor: Councilpersons Rufener and Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID OF 
KIMBLE RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL, INC. (“KIMBLE”) FOR THE NEW VILLAGE 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT, WITH RECYCLING, AND 
ENTER INTO A THREE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH KIMBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID SPECIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE 
VILLAGE AND BID PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY KIMBLE 
 
ORDINANCE 2023-17    Sponsor: Councilperson Spletzer 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, May 17, 2023 | Page 2 of 2 
 

AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 

IX. Unfinished Business 

ORDINANCE 2023-16      Sponsor: Councilpersons Rufener and Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID OF 
KIMBLE RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL, INC. (“KIMBLE”) FOR THE NEW VILLAGE 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT, WITH RECYCLING, AND 
ENTER INTO A THREE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH KIMBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID SPECIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE 
VILLAGE AND BID PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY KIMBLE 
 
ORDINANCE 2023-17    Sponsor: Councilperson Spletzer 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 

X. New Business 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Fetterolf 
A Motion to direct the City Manager to require all departments and employees to take 
any necessary actions for the return of sole control of the Community Center. 
 
MOTION TO AMEND  THE MOTION  Sponsor: Councilperson Spletzer 
A Motion to Amend the previous Motion to direct the City Manager to (1) Verify the 
legitimacy of the Newton Falls Community Improvement Corporation and to make sure 
that it is a viable entity in accordance with State and Federal guidelines; (2) To 
communicate with Heritage Accord regarding the “significant” water line break and to 
verify that any water damage has been mitigated and to verify that Heritage Accord 
continues to maintain insurance on the Community Center for potential claim against 
the policy; and (3) To gain access to evaluate the building and to seek specialized legal 
counsel if deemed necessary and within the City Manager’s spending authority.  

RESOLUTION 08-2023        Sponsor: Councilperson Baryak 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO ACCEPT 
NORTHEAST OHIO PUBLIC ENERGY COUNCIL (“NOPEC”) 2023 ENERGIZED 
COMMUNITY GRANT FUNDS 

ORDINANCE 2023-18    Sponsor: Councilperson Baryak 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION 141.07 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 
PERTAINING TO THE POLICE CHIEF 
 

XI. Public Comments 
XII. Closing Remarks 

XIII. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
XIV. Adjournment 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 1 of 11 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 3, 2023; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Gideon Fetterolf  City Manager Pamela Priddy 
Ward 2 John Baryak  Law Director Brad Bryan 
Ward 3 Tesa Spletzer  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  City Clerk Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor Kenneth Kline    

 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Kline called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Council Present: Councilperson Fetterolf, Councilperson Baryak, Councilperson Spletzer, 
Councilperson Stimpert, Mayor Kline 
Council Absent: None 
Staff Present: City Manager Priddy, Clerk Acomb, Law Director Bryan, Finance Director 
Housley 
Staff Absent:  

IV. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
 
Connie Smith Talcott – Heritage Accord – Update Community Center Project 

- She presented an Executive Summary of the Historic Structure Report and read a 
prepared statement. Engineers and consultants have been used. Grants are 
available to cover 1/3 of the total cost. Fundraising is expected to raise nearly 
$800,000. If they fail to meet their goal, then the 3:1 matching funds grant 
cannot be secured. She advocated for the project and stated the next six months 
are critical with an eye to identify donors. 

- $18,000 per year in utilities without use of the building. Board members collect 
no salary at Heritage Accord. She asked the public to support their fundraising 
efforts so the building can be renovated and open. 

Mr. Baryak wondered why more progress hasn’t been made in the past 4 years. Ms. 
Talcott stated that the pandemic shut them down; but they worked the phones to 
build relationships but were delayed. They have raised $60,000 since then. Ms. 
Stimpert stated that the evaluation of the property took 8 months. The building was 
listed as a historic building when Heritage Accord got involved.  Mr. Rufener thanked 
Ms. Talcott for the efforts. Mr. Fetterolf spoke about the current lease, and he stated 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 2 of 11 
 

that the City of Newton Falls does not hold the lease, but rather the City of Newton 
Falls Community Improvement Corp., an LLC and non-profit corporation. Ms. 
Talcott stated that their lease stands, and a decision can be made by the Courts.  Ms. 
Spletzer clarified how the money was raised. Mr. Baryak clarified that the effort is not 
against the Heritage Accord; the Council wants to help through grants but needs to 
regain control.  Ms. Talcott stated that communication with the community is a 
challenge; but Heritage Accord has made progress. She wishes to work with Council 
Mayor Kline thanked Ms. Talcott for her efforts. He suggested a revision of the 
contract to provide for the allowance of non-city uses of the community center. Ms. 
Talcott stated that some proposed used are feasible and others are not. Mr. Fetterolf 
stated that the past four years have resulted in insufficient progress and poor 
communication from Heritage Accord. He spoke against the LLC being a legitimate 
organization and advocated that their involvement be eliminated with a new 
partnership established with the Village. Mr. Bryan stated that the agreement 
requires regular reports on no timeline. Ms. Stimpert advocated that she has received 
updates and she thanked Ms. Talcott and noted the outpouring of support in the 
community. Mr. Fetterolf clarified the motion on the agenda stating that the intent is 
to issue a directive to the administration to get the community center back under the 
control of the City of Newton Falls instead of the City of Newton Falls Community 
Improvement Corp. so that the City can secure grants to assist Heritage Accord and 
the efforts. 

Mike Wilson – SCOPE 
Mr. Wilson addressed the Council. He offered thanks to Newton Falls for 
allowing the senior center to operate. SCOPE operates several centers in the 
region. He stated that SCOPE has done many things and will do many things, 
including: 

o March 2023 – 632 sign-ins – 84 senior citizens 
o 212 instructional activities 
o 70 medical activities 
o 238 visitors to socialize 
o 112 visitors to be out of the house 
o 1214.75 hours of programming 
o On average, 28 people per day visit for any purpose. 
o Senior Kitchen has been outstanding, and SCOPE supports it. 

He spoke about seniors receiving prescription assistance, free taxes, Covid 
vaccinations, free grocery deliveries, and 351 people on average are receiving free 
grocery deliveries. The staff visits seniors or makes phone calls to seniors to assist 
them with their problems. A grant for mental health services and suicide 
prevention in seniors is being pursued.  

He clarified his belief that non-licensed kitchens can collect donations and are 
permitted to throughout the region. New classes are being added for the seniors. 

Mr. Baryak stated that 55 people were in the building today and he thanked Ms. 
Priddy, Ms. Hanzes, and the volunteers. He added that donations are optional 
and not expected. SCOPE stated its support for the efforts of the city program led 
by Ms. Priddy. Mr. Wilson stated that the other facilities are very much the same 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 3 of 11 
 

as the city program regarding facilities. Mr. Baryak stated that the donation was 
intended to allow the people to help so the program can be self-sustaining. The 
seniors are happy. Mr. Fetterolf wondered if the other facilities are both licensed 
and unlicensed and they all serve food and accept donations. Mr. Wilson stated 
his belief for that to be true.  

Ms. Stimpert wondered if Senior Kitchen was a Newton Falls name. It is. She 
wondered who would be liable if something happened? The law director stated 
that insurance would cover the city’s liability. Mr. Baryak spoke in support of the 
program. Mayor Kline spoke in support of the program but wished that 
communication could have been better upfront before the program was started. 
Mr. Wilson hopes to keep the senior center in the city.  

Brian Gorog - OHM – Update of current projects and grant applications 
Mr. Gorog provided an oral report to the Council. OHM seeks funding for a 
variety of projects. He attends the superintendent meetings with the City 
Manager.  He summarized the grants that have been applied for and have been 
secured so far, including the Ohio Public Works Commission – Paving - $149, 
999 grant – 2023/2024. They are already working on the 2024-2025 funding. 
Regarding the dams, he summarized efforts to create a funding strategy once 
proper assessment strategies are identified for the present conditions of the 
dams. Other grant programs that are being pursued include the Mahoning River 
Revitalization Plan and an EV Charging Station Plan. He attends various 
meetings on behalf of the Village throughout the region to secure money for 
various projects.  
Ms. Spletzer stated that the word “grant” is often misused in the community. Mr. 
Gorog stated that when he states “grant”, he means “grant” in the traditional 
sense… money that is provided with no requirement to be repaid. He has been 
told to not apply for any type of loan. Mr. Baryak asked about the Appalachia 
Community Grants. Mr. Gorog clarified that it is for trails, parks, and other 
recreational uses. Mr. Barak stated how impressed he is with Mr. Gorog and 
commended the recommendation of Ms. Priddy to hire him. Mr. Housley asked 
for the total amount of resurfacing projects. Gorog applied for $400,000 in grant 
money. Legislation is not required to accept the grants.  

 
V. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 

Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She spoke in support of the Heritage Accord and against the Council’s motion on this agenda. 
 
Steve - 2412 S. Canal Street 
He spoke in support of the community center and Heritage Accord. He spoke in support of the 
Senior Kitchen.  
 
Brian Axiotis – 315 Adams Street 
He spoke against the motion related to the community center on the agenda and Council’s 
handling of the situation and the wording of the motion.  
 
Adam Zimmermann – 515 Lemae Avenue 
He thanked Heritage Accord. He spoke against the motion on the agenda citing improper 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 4 of 11 
 

application of a motion. Regarding the CIC, he stated that the village website states that the 
members of the CIC are village employees. He spoke about the draft agenda and the improper 
sponsoring Ordinance 2023-17 in the draft, as well as the budget allocation to the police 
department. He spoke against emails from Ms. Stimpert being included in the meeting minutes 
from April 19, 2023. 
 
Patty Hanzes - 3890 East River Road 
She spoke in support of Heritage Accord and the CIC. She stated her belief that Ms. Stimpert 
and Mr. Kline cannot vote on the motion due to conflicts of interest. She stated that the Village 
has access to the building at its discretion. She spoke about the deplorable conditions of the 
building prior to Heritage Accord’s efforts and applauded Heritage Accord for saving the 
building. 
 
Brian Kropp – 247 Elizabeth Street 
He spoke against Council and their treatment of Ms. Talcott. He spoke against the motion and 
Council’s job performance.  
 
David Hanson – 20 South Canal 
He spoke in support of the lease with Heritage Accord and the Community Center. He advocated 
for keeping the lease in place.  
 
John Richards – 212 Albert Street 
He spoke about the community center lease and stated that some wanted the Community Center 
demolished, but Heritage Accord saved the building. He spoke in support of Mr. Lynch’s 
handling of the situation at the time and against the motion on this agenda. 
 
Chelsea Harper 
She spoke in support of Heritage Accord and the lease. She spoke against the budget as 
presented with this agenda citing confusion about the numbers. 
 
Steve Simpson – 420 Ravenna Road 
A member of Heritage Accord, he spoke on several things: (1) Heritage Accord has never 
claimed that the Village must fix the water line break. It exists and they are handling it 
themselves; (2) He spoke against the motion and asked Council to honor the lease. 
 
VI. Reports 

a. Mayor – Mayor Kline asked to be notified in the absence of the city manager. He 
stated that he asked for legislation to be on the agenda regarding the recording of 
meetings, and it was not included. He spoke about Mr. Gregory being hired to 
record the meetings. He asked the law director regarding his opinion about who 
controls the agenda. Mr. Bryan stated that the City Manager is in negotiations 
with another company who would be cheaper, and she felt that it should not be 
on the agenda. Mr. Bryan clarified that everyone should work together and talk in 
a public forum; but someone must be in charge, and he offered a set of 
recommendations for moving forward. Mayor Kline stated his disagreement with 
the law director’s opinion. The mayor advocated for closing a section of SR 534 
for the Memorial Day Parade and asked the law director to determine how to get 
that done. He also stated that a piece of Park equipment is in bad condition and 
needs to be replaced. Ms. Spletzer stated that the part in question was ordered, 
the wrong part was received and returned, and the correct part is being shipped. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 5 of 11 
 

The mayor thanked Guns and Hoses for funding a scholarship to attend the 
Fire/EMS Academy. Congratulations to Logan Kimball as the recipient of that 
award. He did 3 Mayor’s Choice selections. He attended the Town Hall Meeting 
for Scott Street Sewer. He thanked the voters who came out in poor weather.  

b. Council Members 
i. Ward 1 – Mr. Fetterolf spoke about the motion and assured the public 

that the intent is not to take the building from Heritage Accord; it is only 
to bring the building back under the ownership and control of the city and 
instead of the CIC.  

ii. Ward 2 – Mr. Baryak announced that the administration has performed 
admirably due to their efforts to bring in grant money and work together 
for the Village. He also announced that the annexation is moving forward 
(Dunkin Donuts), and the bids are out to clear the right of way. The street 
department will do a lot of work to save money. He spoke in support of 
the RLF program. He asked Mr. Housley to speak about the police fund.  

iii. Ward 3 – Ms. Spletzer – no report 
iv. Ward 4 – Mr. Rufener – A Utility Appeals Meeting was canceled due to 

lack of quorum. 
v. At-Large – Ms. Stimpert – no report 

c. Finance Director – Mr. Housley has stated that financial reports are on the 
website. Ms. Stimpert stated that her previous requests about line item 52110 
($6538.44) have gone unanswered. Mr. Housley stated that he has not received 
email communication from her with that request.  

d. Law Director – Mr. Baryak asked the Law Director to comment on his legal 
opinion regarding the motion to table the appointment of Mr. Zimmermann. Mr. 
Bryan stated that Mr. Baryak’s motion to table the motion should have taken 
precedent over the original motion to pass the motion. He read a portion of the 
legal opinion into the record as follows: “…the question has been raised as to 
whether Mr. Baryak’s motion to table the appointment motion until the next 
Council Meeting was proper and whether that motion should have had priority 
over the pending motion to appoint Mr. Zimmermann that had been made and 
seconded. After additional research on the matter, my opinion on that issue is as 
follows. Mr. Baryak’s attempted motion to table the vote on Mr. Zimmermann’s 
appointment until the next Council Meeting should be properly described as a 
motion to postpone the vote to a certain time rather than a motion to table. The 
Council Rules section of the Village Codified Ordinances does not make any 
provision as to which type of parliamentary motions have precedence over others. 
Section 121.03(a)(1), however, does provide that unless otherwise specified, 
Council Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules and procedures 
outlined in Robert’s Rules of Order. That Subsection goes on to state that 
Robert’s Rules of Order are to be used as an orderly means to conduct business 
and not as a methodology to hinder the process. Robert’s Rules of Order sets 
forth the order of precedence of motions and provides that a motion to table 
(referred to as a motion to lay on the table) or a motion to postpone to a certain 
time both have precedence over a main motion that is in the process of being 
considered. At the April 19, 2023, Council Meeting, my instinct was that was the 
case, but I did not want to make that recommendation without being able to find 
definitive proof while trying to research the issue in real time during the Meeting. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 6 of 11 
 

As a result, the original motion went forward, and Council voted to appoint Mr. 
Zimmermann to the position. I apologize to the Council, and Mr. Baryak in 
particular, for my mistake. I will be more accurate in making these 
interpretations in the future. Since Mr. Baryak’s motion request was not 
permitted to go forward and the vote on the original motion was taken, the 
mistake should in no way act to invalidate the vote to appoint Mr. Zimmermann 
or result in a redo of the motion to postpone to a certain time and vote on the 
main motion. The main motion involved an appointment, and it is purely 
speculative at this point whether Mr. Baryak’s motion would have received a 
second and have been successful on April 19, 2023. I would like to apologize to 
Mr. Baryak once again and clarify that the following motions (in the following 
order of priority) have precedence over a main motion that is being considered: 
adjourn, take a recess, raise a question of privilege, lay on the table, decide the 
previous question (requires a 2/3 majority), limit or extend the limits of debate 
(also requires a 2/3 majority), postpone to a certain time, commit or refer, 
amend, or postpone indefinitely. The above motion priority rules should be 
considered when these issues come up at future meetings.” Mr. Bryan stated that 
he will keep his handbook for Robert’s Rules of Order at all future meetings. Mr. 
Bryan further stated that Mr. Zimmermann was appointed by majority vote but is 
not eligible for compensation. Mr. Zimmermann is not required to accept 
payment, either. Mr. Baryak stated his disagreement with Mr. Bryan’s opinion. 
Ms. Stimpert asked for a status update regarding her previous request for an 
opinion on the topic of interfering with an appointment. Mr. Bryan stated that he 
was still working on it and apologized for the delay. 

a. City Manager – No report due to absence. 

Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to remove Ordinance 2023-16 from the agenda considering the 
additional information learned about Kimble, so the City Manager can be present and answer 
questions. He was advised that a representative from Kimble was present at the meeting and 
could answer questions directly. The motion was withdrawn. 
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to place a motion on the agenda to direct the City Manager to 
advertise all vacant board and commission positions until filled. Ms. Stimpert seconded the 
motion. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. 
Fetterolf-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0. The motion was added to New Business. 
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to place a motion on the agenda to develop a detailed advertisement 
for the position of city manager and present it to the Council at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting on May 17, 2023.  

Mr. Fetterolf spoke against the motion citing that the position is not open, and they 
should not advertise for a position that is not open. Mr. Rufener clarified that the intent 
is not to advertise but to create an advertisement for the Council to review. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Fetterolf-no; Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. 
The motion passed 4-1. The motion was added to New Business. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 7 of 11 
 

 
VII. Approval of Previous Minutes 

Mayor Kline called for a Motion to adopt the regular meeting minutes of April 19, 2023. 
Moved by: Ms. Spletzer    Seconded by: Mr. Rufener  
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; 
Mr. Fetterolf-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0.  
 

VIII. Public Hearings 
None 

IX. Unfinished Business 
None 

X. New Business 

ORDINANCE 2023-16      Sponsor: Councilpersons Rufener and Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID OF 
KIMBLE RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL, INC. (“KIMBLE”) FOR THE NEW VILLAGE 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT, WITH RECYCLING, AND 
ENTER INTO A THREE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH KIMBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID SPECIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE 
VILLAGE AND BID PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY KIMBLE 
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to suspend council rules in order to allow a representative 
from Kimble to speak and answer questions. Seconded by Ms. Spletzer. 
Roll Call Vote: Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; 
Mr. Baryak-yes.  
The motion passed 5-0. Council rules were suspended. 

Joe Sciaretti –Kimble Sales Manager 
He spoke regarding the specifications and bid documents. Kimble’s intent is that 
Newton Falls would be served by the Twinsburg Facility and assured Council that 
issues with other transfer stations do not affect the Twinsburg station. He 
assured the Council that his contact information is available for their direct use. 
Ms. Spletzer thanked him for mentioning East River Gardens as it is difficult to 
navigate. The Kimble Director of Operations visited the area and took pictures. 
They came out twice to look at it. Mr. Baryak stated that the town hall meeting 
laid out all the specifications and he stated his appreciation that every concern 
was addressed by both candidates. He spoke in support of the bid submitted by 
Kimble for three years. 

Ms. Spletzer made a motion to resume council rules. Seconded by Mr. Baryak.  
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0. Council rules were resumed. 

 
Mayor Kline called for a motion to pass the ordinance.  
Moved by: Mr. Rufener    Seconded by: Mr. Baryak  

Mr. Rufener stated that of the 5 solicited bids; only 3 came back. Kimble was the 
lowest best and matched all current services. Kimble has many loyal customers.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; 
Ms. Spletzer-yes. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 8 of 11 
 

The ordinance passed 5-0. First Reading. 

ORDINANCE 2023-17    Sponsor: Councilperson Spletzer 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
Mayor Kline called for a motion to pass the ordinance.  
Moved by: Ms. Spletzer     Seconded by: Mr. Baryak 

Mayor Kline asked Mr. Housley to comment on the police fund. He stated that 
two officers are still receiving benefits and the budget needed to be increased in 
that fund and reduced in other areas. An SRO, for two and half months, and Chief 
of Police. A PT police officer is handling administrative duties for scheduling and 
evidence with the court and records requests. Chief Fixler is on medical leave and 
the backpay claim must be in the budget. 

Roll Call Vote: Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; 
Mr. Rufener-yes. 
The ordinance passed 5-0. First Reading. 
 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Fetterolf 
A Motion to direct the City Manager to require all departments and employees to take 
any necessary actions for the return of sole control of the Community Center. 
 
Ms. Spletzer made a motion to suspend council rules to allow Council to engage Ms. 
Talcott. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; 
Mr. Baryak-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0. Council rules were suspended. 

Ms. Spelter asked Ms. Talcott to speak regarding a proposal in 2019. Who was it 
submitted to? Ms. Talcott stated the former City Manager requested RFP for use 
of the building and chose their proposal. Ms. Stimpert asked about Section 6c of 
the lease. Has the city violated this lease ever? Ms. Talcott said yes. Mr. Baryak 
stated that the grant writer from OHM can help with grants if the community 
center is placed under the Village government structure. Ms. Talcott stated that 
the lease prescribes that the City and Heritage Accord should work together for 
grant opportunities. Mayor Kline suggested that the City Manager call Ms. Talcott 
and they begin working together. Ms. Spletzer spoke against the CIC and asked to 
see the Articles of Incorporation. The law director recommended stepping back 
from this motion because the lease will still be in force regardless of who controls 
the property. Mr. Baryak spoke in favor of working with Heritage Accord to raise 
funding.  

Mr. Rufener made a motion to resume council rules. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  
  No discussion. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; 
Ms. Spletzer-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0. Council rules were resumed. 
 
Mayor Kline called for a motion to postpone the vote on this motion until the regular 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 9 of 11 
 

meeting of the City Council on May 17, 2023. 
Moved by: Ms. Spletzer    Seconded by: Mr. Rufener  

Mr. Fetterolf spoke in support of the motion to direct the administration to take 
control of the community center from the CIC so that the operation of the 
building can be protected by the Council and the public. The law director 
reiterated that Council should table the motion and postpone the vote until he 
and Council can gain clarity on the intent and wording of the motion. Mayor 
Kline spoke in support of the City Manager and Heritage Accord working 
together.  

Roll Call Vote: Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; 
Mr. Rufener-yes. 
The motion to postpone passed 5-0. 
 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Rufener 
A Motion to direct the City Manager to advertise all remaining vacancies on boards and 
commissions until they are filled.  
Moved by: Mr. Rufener    Seconded by: Ms. Stimpert 

Mr. Baryak stated that his motion to table the appointment of Mr. Zimmermann 
was intended to do this very thing…advertise until a pool of applicants could be 
collected. Mr. Rufener stated that doing this would avoid unnecessary conflict. 
Mr. Baryak asked about the cost. It was stated that it would be free because we 
are posting on the website and Facebook.  

Roll Call Vote: Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. Fetterolf-yes; Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-
abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0.  
 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Rufener  
A Motion to direct the city manager, law director, and council clerk to develop a detailed 
advertisement for the position of city manager and present it to the Council at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting on May 17.  
Moved by: Mr. Rufener    Seconded by: Ms. Spletzer 

Mr. Baryak spoke against the Motion and read a list of the City Manager’s 
accomplishments. Attached. He asked for a reason for the motion. Mr. Rufener 
stated that Ms. Priddy is aware of the motion as he has discussed it with her. He 
shared his concerns with her and wants a professional search to be conducted. 
The public has stated to him a lack of faith and confidence in the city manager. 
He is asking to develop a proper advertisement; then Council can decide when to 
use it. Mr. Fetterolf spoke against the motion. Ms. Spletzer spoke in support of 
the motion and clarified the intent for the Council. Ms. Stimpert reminded the 
Council that a professional advertisement should be created by the 
Administration regardless of when they use it. Mr. Baryak spoke against the 
motion stating that a yes vote would be equal to a vote of no confidence. Mayor 
Kline spoke in support of the motion citing the need to have something high-
quality that can be used when the Council is ready to use it. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; 
Mr. Fetterolf-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0.  
 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 10 of 11 
 

XI. Public Comments 
Julie Lemon - 609 Ridge Road 
She spoke against the city manager and stated she was responsible for the removal of the 
SRO and numerous lawsuits. She alleged that the city manager called the police to 
remove her and Jaime Kline from the property on election day. She spoke in support of 
democracy and democratic processes. 
 
Ana Eby – 50 West 9th Street 
She spoke in support of Heritage Accord and against the Council overseeing the 
Community Center.  
 
Brian Axiotis – 315 Adams Street 
He stated that the goal of those who won the election yesterday is to replace the City 
Manager. He stated that people quit the commissions because of no confidence in the 
Council. He stated that people were not paid for their service in 2022. He spoke against 
the amount of transition that happened in the administrative positions in 2022.  
 
Katie McClean - 512 S. Canal Street 
President of Newton Falls Commerce Association. She stated her job is to speak for 
businesses. She spoke against the current climate for businesses in Newton Falls and 
urged the Council to work to improve relationships with local businesses. She advocated 
for fund raising to support the community center.  
 
Chelsea Harper 
She asked if the City Manager has the right to sign a contract with a recording company. 
She advocated for more transparency regarding the police fund and the budget. She 
spoke against the motion to take control of the Community Center. She stated her belief 
that the CIC could get grants that the Village could not and wondered why that motion 
was permitted when the mayor’s proposed motion was not.  
 
Mark Stimpert – 1023 Page Court 
He read the definition of the CIC from the Village Website. He spoke in support of it. 
 
Steve Debolt – 2412 S. Canal Street  
He spoke in support of the maintenance workers of the city. He commended the mayor 
for his recommendation to and Council for stepping back from the motion regarding the 
Community Center. He expressed hope and encouraged the Council to move forward, 
ignore personalities, and do what is best for the community. 
 
Adam Zimmermann – 515 Lemae Avenue 
He apologized for calling out tonight. He spoke in support of the Senior Kitchen, but 
stated he is unaware of a vote by the Council to start that program. He spoke against the 
city manager for blocking legislation that was properly submitted. He requested the 
record that Mr. Baryak cited with Mr. Zimmermann’s name on it. 
 

XII. Closing Remarks 
Ward 1 – Mr. Fetterolf – He spoke on several topics, including that the Council 
represents the people, last night’s election results, and democracy. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, May 3, 2023 | Page 11 of 11 
 

Ward 2 – Mr. Baryak – He spoke on several topics and encouraged the people to notice 
all the positive things that have been accomplished by the Council and the City Manager. 
He stated that his list of accomplishments for the city manager was intended for an 
executive session. He stated his pride with the Senior Kitchen and the Scott Street Sewer 
Project. He spoke against past administrations.  
Ward 3 – Ms. Spletzer – She encouraged everyone to do better.  
Ward 4 – Mr. Rufener – This week is the community cleanup weekend. Saturday at 9:00 
am. They are targeting the local community parks for cleanup.  
At-Large – Ms. Stimpert – The next Fire Board meeting is May 16 at 6:00pm 
Mayor – Mr. Kline – He spoke in support of the legislation tonight and the postponing of 
the motion regarding the community center.  
 

XIII. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
XIV. Adjournment 

Mayor Kline called for a motion to adjourn the regular meeting at 9:52 pm.  
Moved by: Ms. Spletzer     Seconded by: Ms. Stimpert 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Baryak-yes; Ms. Spletzer-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes; Mr. 
Fetterolf-yes. 
The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned. 
 

APPROVED: 
            

 ________________________________________ 
Kenneth Kline, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Council Clerk 

 































































 
 

VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-16 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener and Stimpert 
  

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID OF 
KIMBLE RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL, INC. (“KIMBLE”) FOR THE NEW VILLAGE 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT, WITH RECYCLING, 

AND ENTER INTO A THREE YEAR AGREEMENT WITH KIMBLE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID SPECIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE 

VILLAGE AND BID PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY KIMBLE    
 
 WHEREAS, the Village’s current solid waste collection and disposal contract 
expires on July 31, 2023, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Village advertised for bids pursuant to law for a new 3 year solid 
waste collection and disposal contract with recycling; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bids were publicly opened on March 29, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Council have reviewed the bid packages that 
were submitted, and Council has determined that the bid proposal of Kimble Recycling 
and Disposal, Inc. (“Kimble”) of Dover, Ohio constitutes the lowest and best bid package 
that was submitted.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to accept 

Kimble’s bid and enter into a 3 year contract with Kimble for the collection and disposal 
of residential and commercial solid waste and recycling, commencing on August 1, 
2023. Said agreement shall substantially conform to the Contract Documents & Bid 
Specifications issued by the Village on March 3, 2023 and Kimble’s bid proposal 
(quoting a price of $21.93 per month for a 96 gallon mobile cart and mobile recycling 
cart, $33.50 per month for 10 bags in lieu of cart service, $2.50 per month for additional 
recycling carts, and other specified amounts for dumpster and special pick-up services), 
as set forth in the attachment hereto.  

 
SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 

adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 

by law. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-16 
PAGE TWO 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2023. 

_____________________________________ 
Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor 

Attest:  _____________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

Approved as to Legal Form. 
_____________________________________ 
Bradric T. Bryan, Law Director 

































































































VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-17 
SPONSOR: Councilperson Spletzer 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 

OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 

WHEREAS, as a result of certain occurrences, information, and expenditures, 
amendments to the Year 2023 Appropriations and transfers of items already 
appropriated for the Year 2023 are desired and required; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance incorporates funding sources and expenditures that 
originated after the most recent Certificate of Resources was issued; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriation amendments authorizes an update of the 
Certificate of Resources to be filed with the Trumbull County Auditor. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

SECTION 1.  That the Exhibit attached hereto hereby amends the current 
appropriations for fiscal year 2023. Any funds not listed in this exhibit shall remain intact 
as previously listed and appropriated. 

SECTION 2. That the Village Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw 
warrants on the Village Treasury for payment of the foregoing appropriations upon 
receiving proper certification and vouchers thereof, and no salaries or wages shall be 
paid except to persons employed by authority of and in accordance with law or 
ordinance. 

SECTION 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open 
meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code.  

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2023. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-17 
PAGE TWO 

_____________________________________ 
Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor 

Attest:  _____________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

Approved as to Legal Form. 
_____________________________________ 
Bradric T. Bryan, Law Director 



2023 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 2 

2023 2023
Current Proposed

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

100 General Fund
POLICE
Personal Services Legal Level 68,032.12 284,484.12  216,452.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 431,400.00 437,900.00  6,500.00  

Total: 499,432.12 722,384.12  222,952.00  
Police Support
Personal Services Legal Level -  1,050.00  1,050.00  

Total: - 1,050.00  1,050.00  
ZONING
Personal Services Legal Level 45,520.80 46,020.80  500.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 34,500.00 34,000.00  (500.00) 

Total: 80,020.80 80,020.80  - 
CITY ADMINISTRATION
Personal Services Legal Level 85,044.20 62,385.46  (22,658.74) 
Other Operations Legal Level 55,472.59 58,609.95  3,137.36  

Total: 140,516.79 120,995.42  (19,521.37) 
Council
Personal Services Legal Level 9,528.63 9,616.83  88.20  
Other Operations Legal Level 15,329.28 10,204.86  (5,124.42) 

Total: 24,857.91 19,821.69  (5,036.22) 
FINANCE
Personal Services Legal Level 98,799.96 98,799.96  - 
Other Operations Legal Level 34,137.30 34,463.58  326.28  

Total: 132,937.26 133,263.54  326.28  
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
Personal Services Legal Level 200.00 500.00  300.00  

Total: 500.00 800.00  300.00  
LAW
Personal Services Legal Level 63,714.70 63,816.76  102.06  
Other Operations Legal Level 5,017.71 4,915.65  (102.06) 

Total: 68,732.41 68,732.41  - 
BUILDING & LANDS MAINTENANCE
Personal Services Legal Level 32,792.00 32,158.00  (634.00) 

Total: 99,192.02 98,558.02  (634.00) 
TRANSFERS OUT
Other Operations Legal Level 161,400.00 35,500.00  (125,900.00) 

Total: 161,400.00 35,500.00  (125,900.00) 
100 Total: 2,017,578.76 2,091,115.44  73,536.68  

221 INCOME TAX
Personal Services Legal Level -  1,141.00  1,141.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 940,110.00 940,110.00  - 
221 Total: 940,110.00 941,251.00  1,141.00  

Amendment 02

ORD 2023-17



2023 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 2 

2023 2023
Current Proposed

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

501 WATER DISTRIBUTION
Personal Services Legal Level 462,800.00 465,100.00  2,300.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 440,000.00 437,700.00  (2,300.00) 
501 Total (Water Distribution): 902,800.00 902,800.00  - 

502 SEWER OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 487,310.00 490,510.00  3,200.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 878,380.41 902,780.41  24,400.00  
502 Total: 1,365,690.41 1,393,290.41  27,600.00  

503 ELECTRIC OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 513,900.00 516,400.00  2,500.00  
Other Operations Legal Level 5,549,900.00 5,547,400.00  (2,500.00) 
503 Total: 6,063,800.00 6,063,800.00  - 

Grand Total: 16,616,788.65 16,719,066.33 102,277.68

Amendment 02

ORD 2023-17



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
RESOLUTION NO.: 08-2023 
SPONSOR: Councilperson Baryak 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO ACCEPT 
NORTHEAST OHIO PUBLIC ENERGY COUNCIL (“NOPEC”) 2023 ENERGIZED 

COMMUNITY GRANT FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Village of Newton Falls is a member of the Northeast Ohio Public 
Energy Council (“NOPEC”) and is eligible for one or more NOPEC Energized Community 
Grants (“NEC Grants”) for 2023 as provided for in the NEC Grant Program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to enter into a Grant Agreement with NOPEC to 
receive one or more NEC grants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Newton 
Falls, Ohio: 

SECTION 1.  That the Council of the Village of Newton Falls finds and determines it 
is in the best interests of the Village to enter into a Grant Agreement with NOPEC, Inc. to 
receive one or more 2023 NEC Grants, which Agreement is identical to or in substantially 
similar form to the Grant Agreement that is attached hereto. Council further authorizes the 
City Manager to execute the Grant Agreement and accept any 2023 NEC Grants.   

SECTION 2.  All formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption in 
accordance with Article III, Section 22 of the Charter of Newton Falls. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS 17th DAY OF MAY, 2023. 

_____________________________________ 
Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor 

Attest:  _____________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

Approved as to Legal Form. _____________________________________ 
Bradric T. Bryan, Law Director 



 

12166975v7 

NOPEC 2023 ENERGIZED COMMUNITY 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

This Grant Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between 

NOPEC, Inc. (“Grantor”), and the Village of Newton Falls, Trumbull County, Ohio (“Grantee”); 

(“Grantor” and “Grantee,” the “Parties”) regarding a grant by Grantor to Grantee to be used 

primarily for energy efficiency or energy infrastructure updates in accordance with NOPEC 

Energized 2023 Community Grant criteria, guidelines and requirements (“NOPEC Policy”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 Grant of Funds. Grantor hereby grants a NOPEC Energized 2023 Community 

Grant (“NEC Grant”) to Grantee in the amount calculated by Grantor based on the number of 

natural gas and/or electric accounts served by Grantor in Grantee in accordance with NOPEC 

Policy in the amount determined by Grantor (“Funds”), for the purposes set forth in Grantee’s 

Grant Disbursement Request, as amended, and incorporated by reference into this Agreement. 

 Use of Funds. Grantee shall use the Funds granted by Grantor for qualified use as 

outlined in the program policies. Funds shall be paid in accordance with NOPEC Policy. NEC 

Grant disbursements shall be accompanied by a completed Disbursement Request Form with the 

expenditures supported by contracts, invoices, vouchers, and other data as appropriate as 

supporting documents. All disbursements for qualified use in accordance with the program policies 

must be submitted by November 30, 2025.  If Grantee does not request disbursements by Grantor 

on or before such date, Grantee shall forfeit any unused Funds for the NOPEC 2023 Grant year.   

 Accounting of Funds. Grantee shall keep all Funds and make all disbursements 

and expenditures consistent with the manner in which all public funds are kept by Grantee in 

accordance with applicable law. 

 Term. The Parties agree that this Agreement shall begin on January 1, 2023, expire 

on December 31, 2023, and be automatically renewed annually unless Grantor discontinues the 

NEC Grant program for any subsequent year, Grantee is no longer a NOPEC member in good 

standing as defined herein, or Grantor requires a new Grant Agreement from Grantee.   

 Renewable Energy Credits. Grantee shall be entitled to claim Renewable Energy 

Credits, carbon credits, or NOx allowances and/or allowances arising under other trading programs 

that may be established in the future for the work completed using grant funding.  Grantor reserves 

the right to claim/apply for such allowances if Grantee does not claim such allowances or this 

Agreement terminates. Grantee must notify Grantor if Grantee does not wish to trade or sell any 

such credits or assets. 

 Records, Access, and Maintenance. Grantee shall establish and maintain all 

records associated with the Funds in accordance with the Ohio Public Records Act and promptly 

make available to Grantor all of its records with respect to matters covered by this Agreement, and 

for Grantor to audit, examine, and make copies from such records. Grantee agrees to share and 

release all of its utility and other data with NOPEC, Inc. and Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council 



12166975v7 

2 

and its consultant(s) in order to measure, verify, and otherwise track savings from energy 

efficiency and for such other related uses as Grantor shall require. 

Property and Equipment Purchases. All items purchased by Grantee from the 

Funds granted herein are and shall remain the property of Grantee. 

Inability to Perform. In the event that Grantee does not or cannot complete or 

perform its obligations under this Agreement, Grantee shall immediately notify Grantor in writing. 

Grantor, with the approval of the Committee formed to award NEC Grants (the “Committee”) and 

Grantee, shall jointly identify amendments or suitable uses that meet NOPEC Policy. 

Dispute Resolution. In the event Grantee desires clarification or explanation of, or 

disagrees with, any matter concerning the Agreement, or the interpretation or application of any 

and all federal or state statutes, rules, regulations, laws, or ordinances, the matter must be submitted 

in writing to Grantor, which shall convene the Committee to review and decide the matter. All 

decisions of the Committee shall be final and binding upon Grantee and be non-appealable. 

Termination. 

(a) If Grantor determines that Grantee has failed to perform any requirements 

of this Agreement, or if Grantee is in default under any provision of this Agreement, or upon just 

cause, as shall be determined by the Committee, Grantor, upon approval by the Committee, may 

terminate the Agreement at any time after providing Grantee with written notice and a period of at 

least thirty (30) days to cure any and all defaults under this Agreement. During such thirty-day 

cure period, Grantee shall incur only those obligations or expenditures which are necessary to 

enable Grantee to continue to achieve compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement shall automatically terminate if Grantee is not a NOPEC 

member in good standing. A NOPEC member in good standing means a Northeast Ohio Public 

Energy Council (“NOPEC” or “Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council”) member whose residents 

are receiving service from Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council’s natural gas or electric 

aggregation program, and which has not provided written notice to withdraw from such Northeast 

Ohio Public Energy Council’s natural gas or electric aggregation program. 

Effects of Termination. 

(a) Within sixty (60) days after termination of this Agreement, Grantee shall 

surrender all reports, data, documents, and other materials assembled and prepared pursuant to this 

Agreement which shall become the property of Grantor.  

(b) The Committee also may withhold any payment of the Funds or require 

Grantee to return all or any part of the Funds awarded if Grantee is found to have violated the 

provisions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, if Grantee 

either withdraws from membership in the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council or from its 

electric or natural gas aggregation program(s) or is otherwise not a member in good standing of 

the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council, Grantee shall no longer be eligible for any NEC Grants.  

The provisions of this paragraph are in addition to the termination provisions of this Agreement 

and to any payments required under the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council Bylaws and the 



 

12166975v7 

3 

Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council of Governments Agreement with its member communities 

in connection with any such withdrawal. 

 Liability. Grantee shall maintain, or cause any vendors or subcontractors to 

maintain, all required liability and property insurance to cover actionable legal claims for liability 

or loss which are the result of injury to or death of any person, damage to property caused by the 

negligent acts or omissions, or negligent conduct of the Grantee. To the extent permitted by law, 

in connection with activities conducted in connection with this Agreement, Grantee agrees to 

defend Grantor and pay any judgments and costs arising out of such negligent acts or omissions, 

and nothing in this Agreement shall impute or transfer any liability of any nature whatsoever from 

Grantee to NOPEC, Inc. or the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council. 

 Compliance with Laws. Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable federal, 

state, and local laws in the performance of the funding. Grantee is solely responsible for payments 

of all unemployment compensation, insurance premiums, workers’ compensation premiums, all 

income tax deductions, social security deductions, and any and all other taxes or payroll deductions 

required for all employees engaged by Grantee on the performance of the work authorized by this 

Agreement. 

 Miscellaneous. 

(a) Governing Law. The laws of the State of Ohio shall govern this Agreement. 

All actions regarding this Agreement shall be venued in a court of competent subject matter 

jurisdiction in Cuyahoga County, Ohio. 

(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any documents referred to herein 

constitute the complete understanding of the Parties and merge and supersede any and all other 

discussions, agreements, and understandings, either oral or written, between the Parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof. 

(c) Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 

interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision 

of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall 

be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the 

remainder of such provisions of this Agreement. 

(d) Notices. All notices, consents, demands, requests, and other 

communications which may, or are required to be, given hereunder shall be in writing and 

delivered to the addresses set forth hereunder or to such other address as the other party hereto 

may designate from time to time: 

In case of Grantor, to: 

Charles W. Keiper, II  

 President 

 NOPEC, Inc. 

 31360 Solon Road 

 Suite 33 

 Solon, OH 44139 



12166975v7 

4 

In case of Grantee, to: 

Title: City Manager 

Name: Pamela Priddy 

612 E. Broad Street 

Newton Falls, Ohio 44444 

(e) Amendments or Modifications. Either party may at any time during the term 

of this Agreement request amendments or modifications. Requests for amendment or modification 

of this Agreement shall be in writing and specify the requested changes and justification therefor. 

The Parties shall review the request for modification in terms of the funding uses and NOPEC 

Policy. Should the Parties consent to modification of the Agreement, then an amendment shall be 

drawn, approved, and executed in the same manner as the original Agreement. 

(f) Headings.  Section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for 

convenience only and shall not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement. 

(g) Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights, duties, or obligations 

described herein, shall be assigned or subcontracted by Grantee without the prior express written 

consent of Grantor. 

(h) Authority.  The undersigned represents and warrants to the other that each 

has all the necessary legal power and authority to enter into this Agreement.  

(i) Determinations by Grantor Final.  All determinations as to eligibility of any 

uses of  an award of any NEC Grant, and the amount and payment schedule of a NEC Grant, will 

be made by Grantor and its Committee, which shall be final, conclusive, and binding upon Grantee. 

(j) Designation of Grantee Representative. Grantee hereby designates its City 

Manager or Director of Finance to take all actions with respect to the NEC Grant and this 

Agreement as may be required and Grantor shall be entitled to rely on the authority of such 

designated representative of Grantee in connection with this Agreement. 

(k) Marketing Consent.  Grantee hereby authorizes NOPEC, Inc. and Northeast 

Ohio Public Energy Council to use information about Grantee’s grant(s) and work funded in any 

marketing they may conduct, and agrees to cooperate with Grantor in connection with such 

marketing. 

[Signature Page to Follow.] 



 

12166975v7 

5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement on the 

last date set forth below. 

GRANTEE: 

Village of Newton Falls, Ohio 

 GRANTOR: 

NOPEC, INC. 

Individual Authorized by Grantee’s 

Legislation 

By:   By:  

Title:  City Manager  Title:  

Date:   Date:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Signature page to NOPEC 2023 Energized Community Grant Agreement.] 

 



 
 

VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-18 
SPONSOR: Councilperson Baryak 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION 141.07 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE 

CODE PERTAINING TO THE POLICE CHIEF   
 
 WHEREAS, the Council desires to establish Section 141.07 of the Village 
Administrative Code that designates the Police Chief position as a part-time, 20 hour 
per week position.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That Council hereby and herein enacts Section 141.07 of the 

Village Administrative Code pertaining to the position of Village Police Chief, as set forth 
in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference. The salary for the 
part-time position of Police Chief shall be $36,000 per annum, prorated based upon the 
effective date of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  That any portions of any ordinances that are in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed.   
  

SECTION 3.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 

 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2023. 

 
      _____________________________________ 

Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Bradric T. Bryan, Law Director 



 
 

 

 

 141.07  POLICE CHIEF. 

 The position of Police Chief shall be a part-time twenty hour per week position. The 

salary for the position shall be as provided by Council. 

  

  

 

 

     

 


	_1regular meeting AGENDA 05-17-23 DRAFT
	2 2023-16 Ord garbage contract
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-16
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener and Stimpert
	USECTION 1.U  That Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to accept Kimble’s bid and enter into a 3 year contract with Kimble for the collection and disposal of residential and commercial solid waste and recycling, commencing on August 1, 2023. Sa...
	_____________________________________
	Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	3 2023-16 Ex.
	4a2023-17 Ord Approp Am2
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-17
	SPONSOR: Administration
	PAGE TWO
	_____________________________________
	Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	5 2023-17 Ex Approp Am2
	6 08-2022 Res NOPEC NEC Grant 2023
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	RESOLUTION NO.: 08-2023
	SPONSOR: Councilperson Baryak
	A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO ACCEPT NORTHEAST OHIO PUBLIC ENERGY COUNCIL (“NOPEC”) 2023 ENERGIZED COMMUNITY GRANT FUNDS
	USECTION 1.U  That the Council of the Village of Newton Falls finds and determines it is in the best interests of the Village to enter into a Grant Agreement with NOPEC, Inc. to receive one or more 2023 NEC Grants, which Agreement is identical to or i...
	_____________________________________
	Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form. _____________________________________

	7 08-2023 Res Ex 2023 NOPEC Energized Community Grant Agreement
	2023-18 Ord Police Chief 141.07.pdf
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-18
	SPONSOR: Councilperson Baryak
	USECTION 1.U  That Council hereby and herein enacts Section 141.07 of the Village Administrative Code pertaining to the position of Village Police Chief, as set forth in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference. The salary for th...
	USECTION 2.U  That any portions of any ordinances that are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.
	_____________________________________
	Kenneth A. Kline, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________




